NO. 48315-7-II

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON  
DIVISION II

---

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Appellant,

v.

KEVIN COX,

Respondent.

---

ON APPEAL FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT OF  
CLALLAM COUNTY, STATE OF WASHINGTON  
Superior Court No. 15-1-00209-0

---

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

---

MARK B. NICHOLS  
Prosecuting Attorney

JESSE ESPINOZA  
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney

223 East 4th Street, Suite 11  
Port Angeles, WA 98362-3015

**

## I. INTRODUCTION

On May 25, 2015, Officer Donald Ponton, Forks Police Dept., applied for and obtained a search warrant to search Mr. Cox's vehicle for a firearm. CP 23. During the course of the search of the vehicle, Officer Ponton found a firearm and determined that Mr. Cox had a prior felony conviction. CP 25–26. On May 29, 2015, the State filed an information charging Mr. Cox with the crime of Unlawful Possession of a Firearm in the Second Degree. CP 67. Mr. Cox challenged the search warrant on the basis that the warrant was issued based on material misrepresentations and/or omissions and/or statements made with reckless disregard for the truth. CP 28.

A *Franks*<sup>1</sup> suppression hearing was held (RP 1–56 (10/28/2015)) and the Clallam County Superior Court found that the warrant was based upon representations which were made in reckless disregard for the truth and that the remainder of the affidavit, absent the offending misrepresentation, did not establish probable cause for the search warrant. CP 5–6.

The State appeals the findings of fact and conclusions of law on the basis that the findings of fact are not supported by substantial evidence.

## II. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

1. The State assigns error to the following conclusion of the trial court:

---

<sup>1</sup> *Franks v. Delaware*, 438 U.S. 154, 98 S. Ct. 2674, 57 L. Ed. 2d 667 (1978).

That Officer Ponton, “maintained that Mr. Cox admitted that he had a firearm in the vehicle when those statements are clearly untrue and were made in reckless disregard for the truth and were not the actual statements and underlining circumstances that would be needed to support probable cause.”

CP 14.

2. The trial court erred by concluding that Off. Ponton stated at least on two occasions within the brief taped statement to the magistrate that Mr. Cox said he had a gun in the car and that, based upon Officer Ponton’s own testimony, these statements were not true. (CP 12–13).

*Off. Ponton made it clear in his affidavit that Mr. Cox said there was possibly a firearm in his vehicle and Off. Ponton’s testimony was consistent with his affidavit.*

3. The trial court erred by concluding that: “Officer Ponton admitted that his conclusions that Cox ‘said he had a gun in his car’ were false.” CP 13.

*Off. Ponton stated in the affidavit and testified in Court that Mr. Cox told him there was possibly a firearm in the vehicle and that it would be under the front seat if it was there. Off. Ponton never admitted that this statement was false.*

RP 26, 30, 35–36.

4. The State assigns error to the following conclusion of the trial court:

That Officer Ponton, “maintained that Mr. Cox admitted that he had a firearm in the vehicle when those statements are clearly untrue and were made in reckless disregard for the truth and were not the actual statements and underlining circumstances that would be needed to support probable cause.”

CP 14.

5. The trial court erred in finding of fact no. 8, by finding that, in the affidavit to the magistrate, Officer Ponton specifically stated that “[Mr. Cox] said he might have a 9mm in his car” because Officer Ponton assumed anyone who still had magazines would still have a weapon. (CP 11).

*Off. Ponton told the magistrate that “that later on [Mr. Cox] said he might have a 9mm in his car” because of what Mr. Cox said about the 9mm magazines and because Mr. Cox stated if he had the firearm, it would be under the front seat.*

RP 24–26, 30.

6. The trial court erred in finding of fact no. 9, by finding that “[w]hen the magistrate (Judge Wood) questioned the Officer during the

telephonic affidavit whether Cox admitted he had a firearm in his vehicle, Officer Ponton said yes.” (CP 11).

*Judge Wood asked Off. Ponton, if Mr. Cox admitted that he has a possible firearm in his vehicle. Off. Ponton replied, “Yeah, he said it would be under the front seat, the front driver’s seat, if he did have it.”*

RP 36 (10/28/15).

7. The trial court erred in finding of fact no. 11, by finding that the magistrate found probable cause for a search of Mr. Cox’s vehicle based on Officer Ponton’s assertions to the magistrate that Cox said he had a gun in his car and the statement that “we had information that he had a gun possibly in his possession or at this apartment.” (CP 11.)

*Judge Wood did not find probable cause until it was clarified that Mr. Cox admitted that he has a possible gun in the vehicle.*

RP 36.

8. The State assigns error to the trial court’s reliance upon *State v. Stephens*, 37 Wn. App. 76, 676 P.2d 832 (1984), for its conclusion that the offending statement by Officer Ponton was a misstatement made with reckless disregard of the facts. *See* CP 13.



9. The trial court erred by concluding that absent Off. Ponton's alleged false statement, there was no probable cause for the search warrant.
10. The trial court erred by entering an order suppressing the fruits of the search of the defendant's vehicle.

### III. STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

1. Whether there is sufficient evidence to support the finding that Officer Ponton told the magistrate on at least two occasions, when applying for a search warrant, that Mr. Cox admitted to him that there were guns in the vehicle (CP 13) when Officer Ponton qualified his statement three times; first, by saying "[Mr. Cox] said he *might* have a 9 millimeter in his car" (RP 36); second, by affirming to the magistrate that Mr. Cox admitted he's got a *possible* firearm in his vehicle; and third, by clarifying that Mr. Cox said the firearm would be under the front seat if he did have it (RP 36)? (Assignments of error 5, 6).

2. Whether there is sufficient evidence to support the trial court's conclusion (CP 13-14) that Officer Ponton, on at least two occasions in the affidavit, maintained that Mr. Cox admitted that he had a firearm in the vehicle when those statements were clearly untrue and were made in reckless disregard for the truth; although, Officer Ponton affirmed to the issuing magistrate in the affidavit and testified before the trial court that Mr. Cox said he *might* have a firearm under the front seat of his vehicle (*see* RP

30, 25, 26, 36, 37, 38, 40) and there was no evidence presented that this was a false statement? (assignment of error 1, 2, 3, 4).

3. Whether there was sufficient evidence to support the trial court's conclusion that the issuing magistrate based the finding of probable cause on the alleged false statement that Mr. Cox told Off. Ponton that there was a firearm in his vehicle, when the Off. Ponton affirmed and clarified to the magistrate that Mr. Cox stated there was *possibly* a firearm in the vehicle. (assignment of error 7).

4. Whether the court's suppression order based upon the erroneous findings of fact and conclusions of law was an abuse of discretion? (assignment of error 9, 10).

#### **IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

##### **A. BACKGROUND FACTS**

##### **Officer Ponton's Statement of Probable Cause (CP 24–26)**

On May 25, 2015, Officer Donald Ponton, Forks Police Dept., was dispatched to a threatened suicide where, Kevin Cox, the defendant, was leaving the hospital and headed home to 250 Fir. Ave. Apt K., in Forks, WA. CP 24, 35. Off. Ponton was informed that Mr. Cox might have a gun and wanted to die. CP 35. Off. Ponton and Clallam County Sheriff's Deputy, Joe Pursley, located Mr. Cox walking down the road (RP10, CP 35) and ended up detaining Mr. Cox until medics arrived and took him to the hospital by

ambulance. CP 25, 35; RP 10–11. Off. Ponton later contacted Mr. Cox at the hospital where he completed an Involuntary Mental Health Evaluation form. CP 25, 35; RP 12.

At the hospital, Off. Ponton talked to Mr. Cox and asked if he had any guns in his car. CP 25, 35. Mr. Cox replied that he had an air rifle and air pistol. *Id.*; RP 11–12. Off. Ponton asked Mr. Cox if he had any regular firearms. CP 25. Mr. Cox replied that he had sold them all. CP 25, 35, RP 12. Off. Ponton then told Mr. Cox that he was concerned for his safety and asked if he could recover them from his car. CP 25, 35. Mr. Cox said yes, but wanted to go with Off. Ponton. CP 25, 35. In talking further, Off. Ponton told Mr. Cox that he would be getting a warrant for the car and asked if anything else would be in there. CP 25, 35. Mr. Cox said, no, but that there might be two 9 mm magazines in there. CP 25, 36. Off. Ponton asked if he still had the guns for those and Mr. Cox said he wasn't sure, but that they might be under the front seat. CP 25, 36; RP 13, 22–23, 25–26, 30, 36.

At that point, Mr. Cox asked if he was going to be in trouble for possessing the guns. CP 25, 36. Off. Ponton told him no, that he simply wanted to put them in safe keeping at the police department while he was being evaluated. CP 25, 36. Then Mr. Cox told Off. Ponton that he was a felon. CP 25, 36. Off. Ponton then told Mr. Cox that he would refer the case to the prosecutor's office. CP 25, 36.

Off. Ponton then applied for and obtained a search warrant to search Mr. Cox's vehicle for a firearm. CP 25, 36. Off. Ponton found a 9 mm firearm in a black metal lockbox in the vehicle and confirmed Mr. Cox had a prior felony conviction. CP 25–26, 36.

**The affidavit for the search warrant**

During the *Franks* hearing and at defense counsel's request (RP 33 (10/28/2015)), the recorded telephonic affidavit for the search warrant for Mr. Cox's vehicle was played for the record and was transcribed at RP 34–37 (10/28/2015). Off. Ponton specifically stated in the affidavit as follows:

We got him over to the hospital and after talking with him over at the hospital for awhile, he said he has a gun in his car. He's got two air guns; an air rifle and an air pistol, but then later on he said he might have a 9 millimeter in his car as well. He is a convicted felon, so he's unable to have those in his possession, so I'm trying to get into his car.

RP 35–36.

Judge Wood inquired further whether Mr. Cox admitted he's got a *possible* firearm in his vehicle and Off. Ponton affirmed that this was correct:

JUDGE: Okay and he's admitted he's got a *possible* firearm in his vehicle then, huh?

OFFICER: Yeah, he said it would be under the front seat, the front driver's seat, if he did have it. He said there are magazines in the trunk and then in the trunk there would be a gun.

RP 36 (10/28/15).

**B. PROCEDURAL HISTORY**

On May 29, 2015, Mr. Kevin Cox, the Defendant, was charged by

information filed in Clallam County Superior Court with Unlawful Possession of a Firearm in the Second Degree. CP 67. Mr. Cox challenged the search warrant on the basis that the warrant was issued based on material misrepresentations and/or omissions and/or statements made with reckless disregard for the truth. CP 28.

On Oct. 28, 2015, a *Franks* suppression hearing was held (RP 1-56 (10/28/2015)) and the Clallam County Superior Court found that the warrant was based upon representations which were made in reckless disregard for the truth and that the remainder of the affidavit, absent the offending misrepresentation, did not establish probable cause for the search warrant. CP 5-6.

**C. OFFICER PONTON'S TESTIMONY AT  
FRANKS HEARING**

Defense counsel examined Off. Ponton regarding the basis for requesting a warrant to search Mr. Cox's vehicle. Off. Ponton testified as follows:

After we got him back to the hospital, I questioned him a little bit, concern for his welfare that he had a gun. He did state that he did have two air guns, I believe is what it was, and that I'd asked him if he has any other guns, any regular guns. He said -- I believe he said that he thinks he might have sold them. Without look[ing] at the report, I can't -- I think he said . . .

Q And if you need to refresh your memory, if have that, you are welcome to look at it and then look at me when you think your memory has been refreshed.

A Okay. . . . I questioned him about the gun, as[ked] him if he had any. He said he had the air rifles. He said that he thinks he might have sold the other regular gun. After questioning him a little bit further, he says he might have some 9 millimeter magazines and that if he did have the guns, it would be under the front seat. Referring, in my line of thinking, I'm thinking 9 millimeter magazines don't fit in air rifles, so when said the guns would be under the front seat, I assumed that there were 9 millimeter pistols under the front seat and then that's -- basically, that's what I based my probable cause for the search warrant off of.

Q Okay in your remembrance, is that your basis for the probable cause is that what you believed you said to the judge in your asking for the search warrant?

A Yeah, I told the judge that we had prior information that he had a gun and that he was gonna hurt himself, he's gonna kill himself and that he did tell me that he had a gun in his car and that it would be under the front seat or possibly had a gun in his car, it'd be under the front seat.

RP 11-13 (10/28/2015).

Defense counsel also questioned Off. Ponton specifically about his discussion with Mr. Cox:

Q Okay, so you asked Mr. Cox if he had any guns in his car or words to that effect.

A Right.

Q And his response was that he had an air rifle, an air pistol or words to that effect?

A Right.

Q And then you then asked Mr. Cox if had any regular firearms? This is all -- or words to that affect? I just don't want to keep repeating things.

A Right, right, yes, I did.

Q Okay and then he indicated to you, no, he sold them all?

A Yes.

Q And, you told him you were concerned for his safety and asked if you could recover them from his car?

A Yes.

Q And would, "them," be referring to the air rifle and air pistol?

A Yeah.

Q Okay and Mr. Cox said yes, but he wanted to go with you?

A Yes.

Q Okay. You advised Mr. Cox, you'd be getting a warrant for his car and asked if anything else would be in there?

A Right.

Q So, is that language you used, you said, I will be getting a warrant for your car?

A I think it is. What I told him is that we'd be getting a search warrant. Not just -- because, he wouldn't necessarily be able to go with us and so before I would search the car, he wouldn't be able to stand there and say no, I don't want you to search any more.

Q Okay, did you explain to him Ferrier Warnings?

A No, I didn't. That's why I told him, I'd be getting a search warrant, just because he wouldn't be able to go with us.

Q Okay and then you asked him if anything else would be in the car?

A Right.

Q He said no, but there might be two 9 millimeter magazines in the car?

A Yes.

Q Okay and you asked if he still had the guns for those?

A Yes.

Q And he replied that he wasn't sure, but they might be under the front seat?

A Yeah.

Q Okay and at that point you went into a discussion about whether he'd be in trouble for possessing guns?

A Yes.

Q And you told him that you didn't think he'd be in trouble, you just wanted to put them in safe keeping at the police department while he was being evaluated?

A Right.

Q And then he advised you he was a felon?

A Yeah and at that point I was...

Q And, then you said you'd be referring the case to the prosecutor's office?

A Right, right.

RP 21-23 (10/28/15).

Defense counsel sought further clarification regarding what Off.

Ponton told the magistrate when applying for the search warrant:

[Q] Okay, so let's see. Did you advise Judge Wood at any time during your search warrant application that Mr. Cox indicated to you he had sold all of his actual firearms?

A I didn't.

Q Okay. And, is it accurate that you advised Judge Wood that Mr. Cox said he had a gun in his car, two air guns; an air rifle and an air pistol?

A Yes.

Q Okay and you additionally advised Judge Wood during the warrant application, that later on Mr. Cox said he might have a 9 millimeter in his car?

A Yes.

Q Okay and then shortly after that, the judge asked, "So, he admitted that he (referring to Mr. Cox), has a possible firearm in his vehicle then?"



A Yeah, he said that, "possible firearm," yes.

Q Okay and your response to that was, "Yes," and then you clarified and said, "He said it would be under the front seat, the front driver seat, if he did have it. It said there are magazines in the trunk and in the front seat, so that would be it."

A Yes.

Q Okay, so did you ever clarify to Judge Wood that Mr. Cox did not actually say he had a gun in his car, he said he might have guns in his car?

A I think that's what -- wasn't that just what that said? I thought that that's what that said, is that he said there were possible guns under the seat.

Q Okay.

A I thought I was clear about that.

Q So, now, you testified earlier that you assumed there was a 9 millimeter pistol under the front seat because of what Mr. Cox said about the magazines?

A Yes, I assumed it would be a 9 millimeter.

Q Okay, so when you said that he has a gun in his car and also the air pistol and the air rifle, that statement was based on your assumption that he had a gun because he told you he had the 9 millimeter magazines?

A Yes, as well as, that he said that if he had them, the gun, referring to the guns, if he had the guns it would be under the front seat.

RP 24-26 (10/28/15).

Then the Court continued questioning for clarification:

THE COURT: Okay and when you used the phrase and I'm gonna read directly from the affidavit.

"We got him over to the hospital and after talking to him at the hospital for a while, he said that he has a gun in his car, two air guns; an air rifle and pistol, and then later on said he might have a 9 millimeter in his car. As well, he's a convicted felon, so he shouldn't have. He's unable to have those in his possession."

So, when you said the phrase, "He said that he has a gun in his car," and then you describe two air guns; air rifle and air pistol. I guess I'm asking you, why you use the phrase, "that he said he has a gun in his car?"

THE WITNESS: *Because he said that he may have the guns under his front seat and so -- the pistol under his front seat and so I said it that way. I didn't -- it wasn't a -- I don't know why other than that, that he said he had it under his front seat or that he may have it under his front seat.*

THE COURT: Uh hum.

THE WITNESS: I thought I later clarified that.

THE COURT: Yeah and I'm gonna go on with that, because later then even Judge Wood, who responded to you and asked a question in the affidavit. He said, quote, "*So, he admitted that he has a possible firearm in his vehicle then, huh?*", unquote. And then you made a response, "*He said it would be under the front seat, front driver seat, if he did have it.*"

Okay, so that's a correct representation of Judge Wood's question to you and then you said, "*If he did have it.*"

THE WITNESS: *Right.*

THE COURT: Okay.

RP 30-31 (10/28/15).

#### **D. THE FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS OF THE TRIAL COURT**

The trial court ultimately found that Officer Ponton recited to the magistrate on at least two occasions in his statement that Mr. Cox admitted that he has a gun in his car and that no actual statement was made by Mr. Cox. CP 13. The trial court found that "Officer Ponton admitted that his

conclusion that Cox “said he had a gun in his car” [was] false.” CP 13. “The magistrate issued the search warrant based on at least two times in the affidavit where the officer maintained that Mr. Cox admitted that he had a firearm in the vehicle when these statements are clearly untrue and were made in reckless disregard of the truth and were not the actual statements and underlining circumstances that would be needed to support probable cause.” CP 13–14.

## V. ARGUMENT

The State challenges the trial court’s finding that Officer Ponton stated in the affidavit for the warrant, in unqualified terms, that Mr. Cox admitted there was a firearm in the vehicle. The State challenges the conclusion Off. Ponton’s made such a statement and that Off. Ponton’s actual statement was an untrue statement made with reckless disregard for the truth. Finally, the State challenges the conclusion that the magistrate relied upon the alleged false representation to find probable cause for the search warrant.

The trial court's findings of fact are reviewed under a clearly erroneous standard, and will be reversed only if not supported by substantial evidence. *State v. Grewe*, 117 Wash.2d 211, 218, 813 P.2d 1238 (1991). Substantial evidence exists only if there is a sufficient quantity of evidence in the record to persuade a fair-minded, rational person of the truth of the finding. *State v. Hill*, 123 Wash.2d 641, 644, 870 P.2d 313 (1994) (citing *State v. Halstien*, 122 Wash.2d 109, 129, 857 P.2d 270 (1993)). Great deference is given to the trial court's factual findings. *State v. Cord*, 103 Wash.2d 361, 367, 693 P.2d 81 (1985).

*State v. Atchley*, 142 Wn. App. 147, 154, 173 P.3d 323 (2007); *see also State v. Vickers*, 148 Wn.2d 91, 116, 59 P.3d 58 (2002).

**A. OFF. PONTON NEVER CONVEYED IN THE AFFIDAVIT THAT MR. COX ADMITTED THERE WAS A FIREARM IN THE VEHICLE BECAUSE OFF. PONTON MADE IT CLEAR THAT MR. COX ADMITTED THERE WAS *POSSIBLY* A FIREARM IN THE VEHICLE.**

The trial court found that “the single most pervasive fact in the affidavit that the Officer recited to the magistrate was that on at least two occasions in his statement he claimed that Mr. Cox admitted that he has a gun in his car. No actual statement was made by Mr. Cox to allow the Officer to make that rather specific conclusion . . .” CP 13. The record does not support this conclusion.

Off. Ponton specifically stated in the affidavit as follows:

We got [Mr. Cox] over to the hospital and after talking with him over at the hospital for awhile, he said he has a gun in his car. He’s got two air guns; an air rifle and an air pistol, but then later on *he said he might* have a 9 millimeter in his car as well. He is a convicted felon, so he’s unable to have those in his possession, so I’m trying to get into his car.

RP 35–36 (10/28/15).

Judge Wood inquired further whether Mr. Cox admitted he’s got a *possible* firearm in his vehicle and Off. Ponton affirmed that this was correct:

JUDGE: Okay and he’s admitted he’s got a *possible* firearm in his vehicle then, huh?

OFFICER: *Yeah*, he said it would be under the front seat, the front driver's seat, *if he did have it*. He said there are magazines in the trunk and then in the trunk there would be a gun.

RP 36 (10/28/15).

From this, the trial court found that Off. Ponton stated at least on two occasions within the brief taped statement to the magistrate that Mr. Cox admitted he had a gun in the car. CP 12–14.

Off. Ponton testified at the *Franks* hearing that he clarified in the affidavit to the magistrate making clear that Mr. Cox did not actually say he had a gun in his car, but that he said he *might* have a gun in his car under the front seat. RP 25–26, 30–31.

From this, the trial court found that “Officer Ponton admitted that his conclusions that Cox ‘said he had a gun in his car’ were false.” CP 13.

These findings are erroneous because Off. Ponton clarified in the affidavit that there was *possibly* a gun in the vehicle. However, the trial court ignored the “*possibly*” and misconstrued what Off. Ponton actually stated in the affidavit. The court changed Off. Ponton’s statement regarding Mr. Cox’s admission from a possibility to an affirmative unqualified statement: Mr. Cox admitted there was a gun in the vehicle. CP 11 (finding of fact no. 9). Finally the trial court concluded that Off. Ponton made the misconstrued statement in reckless disregard for the truth.

These findings are not supported by the evidence because the affidavit

itself shows that Off. Ponton *did not* convey to the issuing magistrate that Mr. Cox admitted he had a gun in his vehicle in *unqualified terms*. In order to come to such a conclusion, one would have to isolate one clause, “he said he has a gun in his car” and ignore the qualification of “possibly” thereby taking the offending clause out of context. Only then could one reasonably conclude that Off. Ponton told the issuing magistrate that Mr. Cox admitted he had a firearm in his vehicle without qualification.

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