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

C. Argument

Before reaching the merits of the State' s appeal, Mr. Cox objects

to the procedural posture of this case Mi Cox was scheduled for trial on

November 18, 2015. That date came and went without fanfare. On

November, 25, 2015, the State asked, and received, for a finding from the

trial court that the court' s pretrial ruling had the " practical effect of

terminating the State' s case." But the State did not terminate the case. 

Nor did they move for a stay or a continuance of the trial date Instead, 

nearly a month later, the State asked that the conditions of release be

modified. Mr Cox remains under those conditions of release, but without

an established trial date, essentially putting him into trial limbo.. 

While Mr. Cox does not dispute the right of the State to file a

notice of appeal, see RAP 2. 2( b)( 2), such a filing does not automatically
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stay the trial date CrR 3. 3( c)( 2)( iv) excludes fiom the " Iime for Inial" 

the period when a case is on appeal, but only after the " acceptance of

review or grant of a stay by the appellate court." Normally when the

State seeks to appeal a case pursuant to RAP 2.2( b), it will either dismiss

the case without prejudice or seek a stay of' the trial date. See, generally, 

State v. Olson, 126 Wn 2d 315, 89.3 P. 2d 629 ( 1995). Neither occurred

in this case. In Olson, the Supreme Court held that technical violations of

RAP 2.2(b) will be overlooked when the " violation is minor and results in

no prejudice to the other party and no more than a minimal inconvenience

to the appellate court," Olson at 319 But in this case, the procedure used

was not minor and resulted in prejudice to Mr. Coxa

Mr-, Cox has a Sixth Amendment right to a speedy trial. Barker v

Wingo, 407 U.S. 514, 92 S Ct. 2182, 33 L Ed2d 101 ( 1972) By the time

an appellate decision is entered, more than a year will have passed, far

more than the 90 days prescribed by CrR 3. 3( b). Mr. Cox has been under, 

the trial court' s jurisdiction after the prosecutor advised the court was

advised that insufficient evidence remained with which to prosecute him.. 

And he will remain under, the trial court' s jurisdiction until such time as

this Court terminates the appeal. Although Mr. Cox is out -of -custody, 

were he to violate his conditions of release, he could be remanded to

custody and serve out the remainder of this appeal under lock and key, 
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despite the fact that he has never been convicted of' a crime. The decision

of'the State to attempt to terminate the prosecution while simultaneously

keeping him under the court' s jurisdiction for an indefinite period of time

is highly prejudicial to Mr. Cox. This Court should enter an order

dismissing this case for violation of' his right to speedy trial. 

Under the Fourth Amendment, factual inaccuracies or omissions

in a warrant affidavit may invalidate the warrant if the defendant

establishes that they are ( 1) material and ( 2) made in reckless disregard

for the truth. State v. Bittner, 66 Wn. App, 541, 8.32 P. 2d 529 ( 1992), 

review denied, 120 Wn 2d 1031 ( 1993); Franks v. Delaware, 438 U.S. 

154, 98 S. Ct. 2674, 57 L. Fd. 2d 667 ( 1978)„ Washington has adopted

the same standard as under article 1, section 7 of the Washington

Constitution. State v. Chenoweth, 160 Wn.2d 454; 158 P 3d 595 ( 2007). 

the State as the Petitioner assigns error to three Findings of Fact

from the trial court' s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law CP, 9- 14.. 

When reviewing a finding of fact, this Court must determine whether

substantial evidence supports the trial court's findings and whether those

findings support its conclusions of law. Ihis Court considers any fact not

objected to a verity on appeal. Conclusions of' law are reviewed de novo. 

State v. Cheatam, 112 Wn App., 778, 51 P 3d 138 ( 2002), Each of the
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trial court' s findings of facts in this case is supported by substantial

evidence in this case and should be upheld. 

Curiously, although the State assigns error to three Findings of

F act, the State fails to assign err or to F inding of F act Number '7 . F inding

of Fact Number 7 is the finding that drives all the subsequent findings. It

reads: 

In testimony at the hearing, Officer Ponton acknowledged that Mr.. 
Cox never said " that he has a gun in his car." In €act, when asked

if he had any guns in the car, Mr Cox stated that he had an air, rifle
and an air pistol; in regard to firearms, he said " no I sold them all;" 

and in regard to why the officer told the magistrate that " he said
that he has a guar in his car." Officer Ponton testified that he

assumed this because on further questioning at the hospital Mi. 
Cox after being told by the officer that he was getting a search
warrant for Mr. Cox's car that Cox indicated there might be two

9mm magazines under the front seat. 

CP, 11 Because this finding of fact is not objected to, it is a verity of on

appeal. Because the State fails to assign error to this critical Finding, this

Court must conclude Mr-. Cox never said he had a gun in his vehicle,. 

reads: 

T he State first assigns error to F inding of F act Number 8, which

In the affidavit to the magistrate, Office Ponton specifically stated
then later on he said he might have a 9mm in his cars." Officer- 

Ponton fficerPontonindicated he said this because he assumed anyone who still

had magazines would still have a weapon. 

CP, 11. This Finding is supported by substantial evidence In his

testimony, Officer Ponton testified as follows: " After questioning him a

N. 



little bit further, he says he might have some 9 millimeter magazines and

that if'he did have the guns, it would be under the front seat Referring, in

my line of thinking, I' m thinking 9 millimeter magazines don' t fit in air

rifles, so when said the guns would be under the front seat, I assumed that

there were 9 millimeter pistols under the front seat and then that' s -- 

basically, that' s what I based my probable cause for the search warrant off' 

of." RP, 12 Finding of Fact Number 8 is supported by substantial

evidence

reads: 

The State next assigns error to Finding off act Number 9, which

When the magistrate (. fudge Wood) questioned the Officer during
the telephonic affidavit whether Cox admitted he had a firearm in

his vehicle, Officer Ponton said yes.. 

CP, 11 This Finding is supported by substantial evidence. The State

apparently takes issue with this Finding of F act because Officer Ponton, 

according to the State' s brief, testified "Mi. Cox admitted he had a

p.gssible firearm in his vehicle." Brief of'Appellant, 4 ( Emphasis in

Original.) The actual testimony in the telephonic search warrant was as

follows: 

JUDGE: Okay and he' s admitted he' s got a possible firearm in
his vehicle then, huh? 

OFFICER: Yeah, he said it would be under the front seat, the

front driver' s seat, if'he did have it. He said there aie
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magazines in the trunk and then in the trunk there would be a

gun. 

RP, 36. Officer Ponton' s answer to the Magistrate' s question was " yeah," 

followed by three modifiers Iaken in its totality, Officer Ponton' s

statement was deceptive and misleading.. 

Taking each of the modifications in order, Officer Ponton' s

response to the question about a " possible frreaim" was that " it would be

under the front seat, the front driver seat, if he did have it " RP, 25

Technically, this statement is accurate. But what it ignores is Findings of

Fact Number 7 ( which is a verity on appeal), where the trial court found

Officer Ponton failed to tell Judge Woods that Mi. Cox initially said he

had sold all the guns Given Officer' s Ponton' s failure to tell Judge

Woods Mr Cox' initial unequivocal statement (` I sold all the guns"), his

recitation of Mr. Cox' later equivocal statement ( the gun would be under

the " driver' s seat, if he did have it") becomes all the more ambiguous, 

The second modification is also inaccurate. Although Mr . Cox

said there would be a 9mm magazine, he did not say it was in the trunk. 

The testimony was, " After questioning him a little bit further, he says he

might have some 9 millimeter magazines and that if he did have the guns, 

it would be under the front seat " RP, 12. There was no testimony at the
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Franks hearing that Mr . Cox ever identified where the 9mm magazine

would be found . 

the most egregious modification, however, is the third one, Mr . 

Cox never said there were any firearms in the trunk. Period. And Officer

Ponton' s statement otherwise is completely false. 

Taken as a whole, including the three modifications, which range

fiom mildly inaccurate to unabashed prevarication, Finding of'Fact

Number 8 is supported by substantial evidence.. 

reads: 

The State next assigns error to Finding of Fact Number 11, which

The magistrate found probable cause for a search of the Toyota

Corolla at 1: 2.3 a.m. on May 25 based on Officer Ponton' s
assertions to the magistrate that Cox said he had a gun in his car

and nowhere in the taped affidavit for search warrant was there any
information for the magistrate as to any statements from witnesses
or Kep Kepler or any hospital personnel supporting the Officer' s
conclusory statement in the taped affidavit that ` we had
information that he had a gun possibly in his possession or at his
apartment." 

CP, 11 Apparently the State takes issue with the statement that the officer

had information there was a gun " possibly in his possession or at his

apartment" To the extent it matters, Mr. Cox agrees that there is no

credible information supporting the conclusory statement that there was a

gun " possibly in his possession or at his apartment " Although Officer

Ponton advised Judge Woods that information was conveyed to him by



others about a gun " possibly in his possession or at his apartment," ( See

RP, 36) both parties to agree this information was not critical to ,Judge

Woods' determination of' probable cause. The critical issue was whether

Mr Cox admitted to one or more guns in his vehicle. The magistrate was

told he did, and the trial court at the Franks hearing found he did not, a

finding that is supported by substantial evidence in the record. 

the trial court relied heavily on State v. Stephens, 37 Wn. App ' 76, 

678 P. 2d 8.32 ( 1984). In Stephens, the police officer noted that marijuana

plants needed watering, observed the defendant approach, and then noted

the plants had been watered. In the affidavit, the officer said he had

observed the defendant water the plants, a statement that was untrue. The

Court of Appeals concluded that while the officer' s conclusion that the

defendant had watered the plants appeared reasonable in light of the

circumstances, the officer decision to state his conclusions rather than

what he actually observed usurped the magistrate' s role The remedy was

to excise the " observations" from the affidavit. Without the

observations," probable cause was lacking and the remedy was

suppression. 

The trial court was correct to rely on Stephens in Mr. Cox' case.. 

Officer Panton did not hear Mr. Cox state he had firearms in the vehicle.. 

While Mr Cox may have made some contradictory statements from which
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a reasonable magistrate may have found probable cause, it was not Officer

Ponton' s tole to usurp that decision. Officer Ponton had an obligation to

provide the magistrate complete and accurate information. As the

Findings of Fact amply demonstrate, this he did not do. The remedy is to

excise Officei Ponton' s conclusions from the telephonic search warrant

Without these conclusions, there is clearly not probable cause. The trial

court was correct to suppress and this Court should affirm. 

D. Conclusion

Ihis order of the trial court should be affirmed. In the alternative, 

this Court should dismiss for violation of Mr . Cox' speedy trial rights. 

DAIED this
6th

day of April, 2016„ 

Thomas E' Weaver, WSBA #22488

Attorney for Respondent
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WEAVER LAW FIRM

April 06, 2016 - 2: 57 PM

Transmittal Letter

Document Uploaded: 7 -483157 -Respondent' s Brief. pdf

Case Name: State of WA v Kevin Cox

Court of Appeals Case Number: 48315- 7

Is this a Personal Restraint Petition? Yes @ No

The document being Filed is: 

Designation of Clerk' s Papers Supplemental Designation of Clerk' s Papers

Statement of Arrangements

Motion: 

Answer/ Reply to Motion: 

p Brief: Respondent' s

Statement of Additional Authorities

Cost Bill

Objection to Cost Bill

Affidavit

Letter

Copy of Verbatim Report of Proceedings - No. of Volumes: 

Hearing Date( s): 

Personal Restraint Petition ( PRP) 

Response to Personal Restraint Petition

Reply to Response to Personal Restraint Petition

Petition for Review ( PRV) 

Other: 

Comments: 

No Comments were entered. 

Sender Name: Thomas E Weaver - Email: admin() tomweaverlaw. com

A copy of this document has been emailed to the following addresses: 

prosecutor@co.clallam.wa. us



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

to

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

DIVISION II

STATE OF WASHINGTON, ) Court of Appeals No.: 48315- 7- 11

Respondent, ) DECLARATION OF SERVICE

vs.. 

KEVIN COX, 

Defendant

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

COUNTY OF KITSAP ) 

1, Alislra Freeman, declare that I am at least 18 years of age and not a party to this action

On April 6, 2016, 1 e -filed the Brief of Respondent in the above -captioned case with the

Washington State Court of'Appeals, Division Two; and designated a copy of said document to
sent via email to the Appeals Department of the Clallam County Prosecuting Attorney' s Office
prosecutor cr co. clallam.wa.us) through the Court of'Appeals transmittal system. 

On April 6, 2016, I deposited into the U. S. Mail, first class, postage prepaid, copies of the

Designation of Clerk' s Papers and the Statement of'Arrangements to the defendant: 

Kevin Cox

85 Keys Road West

Elma, WA 98541

DECLARATION OF SERVICE - 1 The Law Office of Thomas E Weaver

P O. Box 1056

Bremerton, WA 98337

360) 792- 9345
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14

15
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25

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that the foregoing is
true and correct .